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LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF MANITOBA
Monday, December 10, 1990

The House met at 8 p.m.

Hon. Clayton Manness (Government House
Leader): Mr. Speaker, before we resume the review
of Estimates, | would ask that you petition the House
to determine whether there is a will to sitbeyond ten
o’'clock.

It is not the Government's intention in any way to
push a long sitting of tonight. Nevertheless, | will
leave it up to the understanding of the Opposition
that there may be good reason to go beyond ten
o’clock, and that the Department of Family Services,
the consideration of their Estimates, will continue in
the Committee Room.

Within the Chamber, Environment, and should
Environment be completed before 9:30 or ten
o’clock, we will, as the Government, be holding the
Department of Justice in the wings, and their
Estimates might continue.

Again, | am not putting a parameter around the
closing tonight, but there is my understanding that
common sense will prevail. Certainly, the
Government has no intention to push the
consideration beyond the late hour of midnight.

Mr. Speaker: Is there unanimous consent to sit
beyond ten o’clock? Is it agreed?

Mr. Kevin Lamoureux (Second Opposition
House Leader): Mr. Speaker, the Government
House Leader (Mr. Manness) has quite eloquently
put that he is seeking some type of co-operation to
allow us to sitpastten o’clock. He does not need the
Opposition’s permission to sit past teno’clock, even
though it would be nice.

In our previous discussion, | had suggested to him
that if in fact there is a possibility of an agreement,
then we would be receptive to sitting until 12,
midnight. Otherwise we in the Liberal Party would
like to adjourn at ten o'clock failing any type of
agreement.

Mr. Speaker: Is there unanimous consent to sit
beyond ten o’clock? Agreed? No?

* (2005)

Mr. Steve Ashton (Opposlition House Leader): It

is not a matter of House Business. | think the
Government House Leader was essentially making

an announcement. We have procedures that deal
within our rules in terms of sitting past ten o’clock.
We certainly do not have any great difficulty sitting
an additional period of time tonight, as we often do
on a Monday night. The Liberals have their way of
dealing with that. There are procedures, but our
rules essentially allow for that. | would suggest we
treat the announcement as an announcement,
rather than anything requiring leave from the House.

Mr. Speaker: We are going to do Family Services
in Room 255; the Department of Environment,
should it complete its Estimates between the hours
of 9:30 and 10, therefore, we require leave to do the
Department of Justice. Is there leave for that?

Some Honourable Members: Leave.

Mr. Speaker: Yes, there is leave. That is agreed
upon. The Honourable Government House Leader?

Mr.Manness: No, that s fine, Mr. Speaker. We are
ready to go into Supply.

Mr. Speaker: It is agreed.

CONCURRENT COMMITTEES OF SUPPLY

SUPPLY—FAMILY SERVICES

Mr. Deputy Chairman (Marcel Laurendeau):
Order, please. Will the Committee of Supply please
come to order. This evening this section of the
Committee of Supply meeting in Room 255 will
resume consideration of the Estimates of the
Department of Family Services. When the
committee last sat, it had been considering item
6.(d) Special Programs and Immigrant Services: (1)
Branch Operations $145,700, on page 65. Shall the
item pass?

Ms. Becky Barrett (Wellington): Mr. Deputy
Chairman, | have just a couple more questions here,
| think. On the Estimates expenditures on page 107
of the detailed Estimates, | am wondering if the
Minister can explain, under the Employability
Enhancement Programs, the reason for the actual
expenditures being $3,900,000 as opposed to the
Adjusted Vote appearing a million dollars more,
$4,900.000.007

Hon. Harold Gllleshammer (Minister of Famlly
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Services): Yes, it refers to the Gateway Program.
There is a change in accounting practices from
reporting it on a cyclical basis to an annual basis.
There is a difference in the funding because of that.

Ms. Barrett: On the Immigration and Settlement
Services area there is the new initiative titled
Bridging Cultures Program. | am wondering if the
Minister can explain that area which would appear
to me to be the major difference between the
expenditures of '89-90 and this year?

Mr. Gllleshammer: Yes, this is a new program that
was announced during August and September. The
details are just being finalized at this time.

* (2010)

Ms. Barrett: | assume that some of those details are
details as to how community-based activities could
access the funding for the Bridging Cultures
Program and whatthe parameters of that wouldbe?

Mr. Gllleshammer: Yes, the guidelines as to the
manner in which funds are accessed to the Bridging
Cultures Program are being developed at this time.

Ms. Barrett: Do you have an estimated time of
arrival for those guidelines?

Mr. Gllleshammer: We are hoping thatwe can put
the program into place for the last quarter of this
fiscal year.

Ms. Barrett: Then in the Grants list it has $45,000
for this year. Would that be one quarter’'s
expenditures, or is that what would be considered
to be a full year's expenditures of grants?

Mr. Gllleshammer: The full year is $65,000.00.

Ms. Barrett: For 1990—$65,000 will be available for
community groups in January?

Mr. Gllleshammer: No, | indicated the full year
would be $65,000, so it will be pro-rated for the last
quarter.

Ms. Barrett: So the $45,000 figure here is
inaccurate? In the Grants list, it says Bridging
Cultures Program, $45,000.00.

Mr. Gllleshammer: Yes, the $45,000 will be
available for the start-up of this program for the last
quarter of this year.

Ms. Barrett: Then beginning the next fiscal year of
April 1, there would be $65,000 available for the full
fiscal year?

Mr. Gllleshammer: We are not sure what the next
budget is going to contain at this time, but we
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anticipate that this program would be an ongoing
one.

Ms.Barrett: Am | to assume thatthe $65,000 figure
that the Minister discussed earlier was the amount
of money that was in the release when it was put
forward in August or September?

Mr. Gllleshammer: | do not recall there being a
figure announced at that time.

Ms.Barrett: | do notmean tobelabour the point, but
the Minister did refer to $65,000, and | am having
trouble putting that in context.

Mr.Gllleshammer: We would anticipate thatthe full
year costs would be in the neighbourhood of
$65,000 and that may be an accurate figure for next
year, but for the start-up costs and the final segment
of this year, we have $45,000.00.

* (2015)

Ms. Barrett: | am wondering if the Minister does
have any more specifics about what these at-risk
immigrant families might look like, what kinds of
general programs were announced in August or
September? | think the Minister was probably busy
doing the same kinds of activities that | was during
thattime period, and | do notrecall the details of that
announcement, or if we could have a copy of the
announcement, perhaps would be sufficient.

Mr. Gllleshammer: | can tell you that the program
was announced during August and September, but
the final details of the plan are just being puttogether
at this time. As the name implies, Bridging Cultures
is an attempt to facilitate the adaptation of
ethnocultural groups into the work force here in our
province.

Ms. Barrett: So it deals with employment
preparation. That is not stated in the detailed
Estimates process, it says, supports at-risk
immigrant families. So it was not clear to me that
was employment preparation.

Mr. Gllleshammer: It will probably have a broader
interpretation than that, but it is an attempt to
facilitate immigrant families resettle in this province.

Ms. Barrett: Will the complete $45,000 be
distributed to groups? The reason | am asking is that
itis a fairly short time period to have groups notified
of the grants availability, having them present briefs
for money, requests for some of this grant money
and then turning around and getting the money out
before March 31. Is it planned to have the
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department spend all of that money before March
317

Mr. Gllleshammer: Yes, we have staff who have
been working with these groups and we do not
anticipate that there is going to be any problem. Itis
not a large amount of money to be spending.

Ms. Barrett: | will agree with the Minister on that.
Just another couple of questions. In the draft annual
report, it states that some statistics, or some
percentages of immigrants coming into Manitoba—I
was struck by the small but definite increase in
labour markst criteria.

In '89, 62.3 percent were selected for socially
humanitarian, and 65.4 percent in ‘88, so there was
a decline of over 2 percent in that category and, at
the same time there was a 4 percent increase
between '88 and '89 for labour market criteria
immigration. The reason | was struck with this is that
it appears to relate to what the federal Government
guidelines in programs on immigration are aiming
for, which is asking for a higher reliance on labour
market criteria than has been the case in the past.

| am wondering if the department thinks that the
federal immigration guidelines will have an impact
on this small but definite trend in the Manitoba
immigration figures?

* (2020)

Mr. Gllleshammer: You are asking me to speculate
on what is going to happen in the future. Hopefully,
we are going to still be concerned with uniting
families, but also | expect that we are going to try
and attract skilled workers to fill certain positions
which are available in the province and have them
come in as contributing members of society.

Ms. Barrett: | did not want to ask the Minister to
speculate, just to share with us his plans.

Finally, in the Grant sections, there are two major
areas of Grants in Immigration and Settlement: one
to private-sector, registered business, and the other
to non-profit, non-governmental organizations
registered in Manitoba. There is a significantly
higher amount of money going to private-sector,
registered business than there is to the non-profit,
non-governmental organizations; and secondly,
there is no change in any of the grants for '90-91
over '89-80. | am wondering if the Minister can give
me an example of what some of those registered
business are, and what kinds of provisions they
make, how do they access this money, as well as
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some of the non-profit, non-governmental
organizations?

Mr. Gllleshammer: In the private sector we
subsidize employers who hire immigrants who are
attempting to get their certification recognizedin the
province, and may be in the process of having their
credentials recognized. We subsidize the employer
and the wage that they are paid. To give you some
examples here, we have lists of employers—and
that is perhaps not of interest to you, but the position
may be. There are assistant accountants, technical
assistants, dental technicians, lab assistants, lab
scientists, junior accountant, industrial mechanic,
aircraft mechanic, legal assistant, accountant
trainee technicians, senior accountant. The firms
are indicated here as well. While this training
process is going on and the credentials are being
upgraded and recognized, we subsidize the wage.

Ms. Barrett: | appreciate that information. Could the
Minister tell me what the rate of subsidization is?

Mr. Gllleshammer: Yes, | can. The provincial
contribution offered to private-sector businesses is
based on a percentage of the gross wages paid to
an employee over a 52-week period. Employers are
eligible for wage subsidies of 70 percent of the gross
weekly salary to a maximum of $280 for the first four
weeks; 50 percent of the gross weekly salary,
maximum $200, for the following 22 weeks; and 30
percent of the gross weekly salary to a maximum of
$120 for the final 26-week period. The maximum
subsidy for the 52 weeks of employment will not
exceed $8,640.00.

Ms. Barrett: Are there any regulations or
guarantees or requirements that these businesses
must agree to that they will pay the going wage, or
can they pay the minimum wage for these people,
or are they required to pay what a dental technician
would be paid normally?

* (2025)

Mr. Gllleshammer: ltis the intent and the hope that
they pay the employee at the going rate for that
position, and also that they keep the employee on
after the training period has been completed.

Ms. Barrett: The intent and the hope, but there is
no requirement, is that what is being stated?

Mr. Gllleshammer: Yes, on the far right-hand side
of thatlistthat | was reading before, it indicates those
who have completed the training, those who have
quit, and those who are continuing init. They do not
sign any long-term service contract, but the hope is
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that their intentions are honourable and that they
would not only pay the going rate, but also consider
that the employee become a full-time employee and
continue.

Ms. Barrett: Are there records kept of what the
individuals who are being subsidized are actually
being paid?

Mr. Gllleshammer: Yes, we have that information.

Ms. Barrett: Do employers pay the going rate, or
below the going rate, or the minimum wage?

Mr. Gllleshammer: Generally, they do.

Ms. Barrett: Can the Minister tell me how many of
these individuals stay with the same business after
their, | assume, 52 weeks of subsidization is
completed?

Mr. Gllleshammer: | am told about 60 percent of
the employees remain with thatcompany and would
point out that the employer takes part of the
ownership for the program and the training and the
funding of that. As | indicated, about 60 percentstay
with that firm.

* (2030)

Ms. Barrett: | would be interested in seeing what
the percentage of employers, No. 1, who pay the
average going rate for these various occupations;
and, No. 2, for those who do not, what the amount
less than the average going rate is? | am sure the
Minister is understanding what my problem here is,
is that without a regulation, or something more
intense than an intent and a hope that they will pay,
there is the possibility for employers seeing this as
a way of getting help and assistance at less than
what they would be required to pay a regular
employee, and they would also get subsidization at
the same time. So | am pleased that there are 60
percent that stay. | would hope thatit would actually
be higher. | am bit concerned, and | am not
suggesting that | need any more information right
now. | would justlike to put on the record the concern
that | have on this part of the program.

Can the Minister give me some information on the
non-profit NGOs that are involved in these activities
that access the $50,000.007

Mr. Gllleshammer: Perhaps | could give you the
1989-90 projects that were funded. The Afghan
Association of Manitoba, and it was called the
Afghan Community Development and Networking
Project; the Ethiopian Community in Winnipeg,
Integration and Settlement of Ethiopians in
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Winnipeg; the Winnipeg Boys and Girls Clubs, and
it was called the Intergenerational Conference; the
Pembina Valley Development Corporation, Kandier
Educational Needs Assessment; the Interfaith
Immigration Council, Housing Research Project on
Factors AffectingLandlordsand Immigrant Tenants;
Planned Parenthood Manitoba and others.

Ms. Barrett: These are all for special projects that
deal with immigration and settlement issues. Is that
accurate?

Mr. Gllleshammer: That is correct.

Ms. Barrett: The list that the Minister has given me,
| understand most of it. | am not quite sure |
understand the rationale for the Boys and Girls
Clubs, Intergenerational Conference. How that
applies nor what the Planned Parenthood money
would have been used for.

Mr. Gllleshammer: The Planned Parenthood
Manitoba, the project was called Health Advocates
Training Program.

Ms. Barrett: And the Boys and Girls Clubs,
Intergenerational?

Mr. Gllleshammer: These were immigrant boys
and girls who were having difficulty relating to older
generations of earlier immigrants to this country and
it was simply called the Intergenerational
Conference.

Ms. Barrett: That does clarify it. Were these the
entire list or is this just a sample of the funding?

Mr. Gllleshammer: That was a partial list.

Ms. Barrett: Would it be possible to have access or
get access to the full list?

Mr. Gllleshammer: It is possible.

Ms. Barrett: Seeing as how it is possible, may |
requestit?

Mr. Gllleshammer: You may request it.

Ms. Barrett: Will my request be looked upon
favourably?

Mr. Gllleshammer: Certainly.

Ms. Barrett: Mr. Deputy Chair, | just wanted it put
on the record that my honourable friend from
Osborne was not the only one who could make
these kinds of series of questions here.

| have one further question of clarification that |
neglected to ask under the earlier private sector
register. Is this program the item called Program
Recognition that is listed in the detailed Estimates?
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Support for 26 new positions, 29 previous
placements for recent immigrants in professional
and technical occupations.

Mr. Gllleshammer: Yes.

Ms. Barrett: | have many more questions, but | am
going to hold them until a later date. So | have no
further questions under this area.

Mr. Reg Alcock (Osborne): Perhaps, Mr. Deputy
Chairman, we could begin by clarifying which this
areais.We are on Item 09-6D-1 Branch Operations,
but the Minister has been willing to take questions
inthatarea 09-6D-2, 6D-3 and 6D-4. Is that correct?
So we have gone basically through the remaining
appropriations. The Member for Wellington (Ms.
Barrett) is finished with her questioning in this
division.

Mr. Deputy Chalrman: That is correct.

Mr. Alcock: Good. Then let us start back at Branch
Operations. Let me just try to get a better
understanding of how this organizational structure
works. In this particular division, where we have day
care, for some particular reason we have an
administrative structure that is presumably
divisional administration.

We then have an administrative structure that is
youth in nature and in responsibility and a series
programs, and now we have a third administrative
structure. This is the branch, if | understand
correctly, that is responsible for programs to
immigrants, as well as special opportunity
programming for certain individuals, but not
necessarily because they are immigrants.

Is that a fair way of characterizing this? These
next items that we have in this division, do they all
report through this particular Branch Operations? Is
it the administrative head of the Human Resources
Opportunity programs, the centres, the
Employability Enhancement and the immigration
and settlement?

(Mrs. Rosemary Vodrey, Acting Chairman, in the
Chair)

Mr. Gllleshammer: That is correct.

Mr. Alcock:Madam Acting Chairman, perhaps then
the Minister could just position these series of
activities for me in terms of overall Government
policy. The Human Resources Opportunity
programs, is it fair to characterize them as largely
serving an Income Security clientele?

Mr. Gllleshammer: That is correct.
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Mr. Alcock: Then there are some programs for
newly arrived landed immigrants and the like that
have been brought together as a result of some sort
of departmental reorganization?

Mr. Gllleshammer: That is correct.

Mr. Alcock: Madam Acting Chairman, there were a
series of services offered under the Department of
Labour whichweredirected atimmigrants. Does the
Department of Labour still have responsibility in the
area of immigration at all, or has that function been
transferred here entirely?

Mr. Gllleshammer: Sometime ago they were
transferred to the department of Employment
Services and then in the reorganization of the
departments, it has remained here.

Mr. Alcock: So thenis it fair to characterize this area
as being the province's centre or accountability
point for services to immigrants in this province?

Mr. Gllleshammer: At the provincial level, that is
correct.

Mr. Alcock: When we talk about negotiations with
Ottawa, for example, around changes to
immigration quotas and changes to their
relationship with the international community, is that
done through this department?

Mr. Gllleshammer: We would have some input in
that area.

* (2040)

Mr. Alcock: Is there a relationship between this
particular branch and the overseas offices that the
province operates in the European community and
in Hong Kong?

Mr. Gllleshammer: No.

Mr. Alcock: Particular to entrepreneurial
immigration are there recruitment activities that are
undertaken by this particular department?

Mr. Gllleshammer: There are no recruitment
initiatives coming out of this department.

Mr. Alcock: Now does the Department of Education
have any responsibilities for immigrants other than
the broad responsibility it has for educating
Manitobans and duly landed or visaed
non-Canadians?

Mr.Gllleshammer: We share the responsibility with
Education for the program called English as a
Second Language.

Mr. Alcock: Can the Minister describe the nature of
that sharing and the nature of that relationship ?
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Mr. Gllleshammer: The delivery of English as a
Second Language is done by the Department of
Education.Ourrole is that we have a member of our
department seconded to Education to assist with
that program.

Mr. Alcock: Would it be fair to characterize that
relationship that, though the Department of
Education is responsible for the specific task of
teaching English as a Second Language, this
department would have a broader responsibility in
terms of reaching out to people, recruiting them for
and seeing that they access those programs
providing social supports to people whoneed them?

Mr. Gllleshammer: For the most part, that is
correct. The delivery of the program is done through
Education, but for the social services they may well
access various branches of this department.

Mr. Alcock: Is that the only function the Department
of Education has relative to new Canadians?

Mr. Gllleshammer: | am sorry. The only role that
the Department of Education plays?

Mr. Alcock: Madam Acting Chair, | am just going to
sort out where the responsibility lies for services to
new Canadians or to immigrants, other than the
general educational programs, you have mentioned
one special service that is targeted on immigration.
| am asking, is that the only one that is run by the
Department of Education?

Mr.Gllleshammer: There are a number of services
that are provided by our department. Education’s
role is in the language training under ESL.

Mr. Alcock: Are there other departments of
Government that have specific responsibilities for
supporting new Canadians?

Mr.Gllleshammer: The other department would be
Culture, Heritage and Recreation, and their
involvement is in the cultural area. Another
department that | would mention is Industry, Trade
and Tourism, which has some responsibility for
entrepreneurial initiatives for immigrants.

Mr. Alcock: If we can just put that aside for a
second, since | want to come back toitina moment,
but | want to just focus on the employment training
for a second. This department operates through this
branch some employment training programs, but, as
lunderstandit, itis not the sole home of employment
training programs in this Government.

The Department of Education operates some
institutionally-based training at universities,
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technical schools, colleges and the like. Whatis the
boundary between those two programs? How have
you differentiated? When you made the decision to
transfer programs over to this department from the
Department of Education, what was the basis on
which those transfers were made?

Mr. Gllleshammer: The Department of Education
provides a much broader base of training for new
Canadians, for immigrants. The bulk of the
immigrants who are assisted by this department are
on social assistance. That is a distinction that is
made with Education.

Mr. Alcock: | want to come back to the immigration
programs in a moment, and the supports to
immigrants. | think that is an important point that
bears following up on. | just want, for the moment,
to try to get a sense of some of the boundaries here
between this department and the Department of
Education relative to the broader issue of training,
not just of immigrants. Why is it that, outside of the
traditional programs such as colleges and technical
schools—maybe | should ask the question this
way—certain programs are transferred to this
department from the Department of Education at
some point. | am wondering why the decision was
made to transfer some of those programs and not
all of them.

Mr. Gllleshammer: The transfer of those programs
wentthe other way. Programs were transferred from
Economic Security to Education. This department
kept the programs for social assistance recipients.

Mr. Alcock: There was a program, | believe it was
called New Careers. Does it still exist?

Mr. Gllleshammer: Yes, it still exists. It was one of
the programs that was transferred from this
department to Education.

Mr. Alcock: One of the target groups for that
program were people who required specialty
training and support. Why would a program of that
sort be transferred and not some of these others?

Mr. Gllleshammer: | am told that the New Careers
is primarily for Native people, that it was not targeted
for just social assistance recipients, and that it was
a long-term program. The decision was made that it
would be part of the package that Education would
offer.

Mr. Alcock: | am just wondering why this
department would deliver any training programs?
Why would you not transfer them all to Education if
they are educationally based?
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* (2050)

Mr. Gllleshammer: That question has been raised
before. These are ones that had a specific cost
sharing for our training programs under the
Employability Enhancement agreement, and
because of that they have remained in this particular
department.

Mr. Alcock: Would the department lose
cost-sharing if these were delivered by the
Department of Education?

Mr. Gllleshammer: The common denominator
across the country seems to have these programs
linked with the departments that provide social
assistance.

Mr. Alcock: We are following other provinces. My
question was, if a program like this was delivered by
the Department of Education, would CAP not
cost-share it? Is that the decision from CAP?

Mr. Gllleshammer: That may or may not be the
case, but the important thing is to keep some linkage
between our training programs and social
assistance recipients.

Mr. Alcock: Does the Department of Education not
respond to the training needs of social allowance
recipients?

Mr. Gllleshammer: In some cases they do but for
our purposes, we feel that there is some benefit of
having a linkage between training programs and
social assistance recipients.

Mr. Alcock: Can the Minister help me to understand
thatbenefit? Whatis the nature of thatbenefit? What
is the tangible benefit?

Mr. Gllleshammer: These are the individuals who
access our department, and direct referrals can be
made from Social Assistance Program to training. |
think it is fair to say that we are more familiar with
our clients and have a closer contact with them than
Education does.

Mr. Alcock: Those same criteria exist in an awful
lot of areas. The same argument can be made
relative to health care. The reality is that you deprive
them of a normal educational experience when you
put them into something that is not part of the
mainstream. That decision was made some long
time ago with children. The decision was that
children would be served by the regular school
system, and that this department would provide
support to that and move away from that principle
when it comes to adults.
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Mr. Gllleshammer: | am not sure where we are
going with this, but | guess if you are wanting me to
say that the Department of Education could
absolutely provide all of the education and training
programs that exist, no doubt they would, they
could. There are a number of individuals who
access the training programs through the social
assistance contact they have with workers in district
offices. There seems to be some importance in this
linkage between our social assistance recipients
and training.

Mr. Alcock: We have too much to go through to
belabour this point for very long, so | shall move on.
| would leave it with the comment that one of the
things that the program seemed to be directed at is
to try to return people to the mainstream, if you like,
to divert them from income security programs. Yet
rather than taking them back into the mainstream,
we seem to prefer to stream them off into programs
that are still run by this Department. It is just an
interesting policy that we had moved away from in
other areas. It is kind of a throwback, in a way.
Unless the Minister would like to respond, | can
move on.

Mr. Gllleshammer: | can respond, but | guess |
would prefer to move on.

Mr. Alcock: | am justlooking at the Speech from the
Throne. Under the heading Knowledge Skills and
People, there are a number of initiatives that were
spoken about in the speech relative to skills,
training, opportunities, incentives and those sorts of
things. | am wonderingif responsibility for delivering
on any of these promises made in this speech rests
with this Department? Or are these all the
responsibility of other departments?

Mr.Gllleshammer: | donot have the speechin front
of me, but certainly we are as concerned as anybody
with the success of training programs and having
people move into the mainstream, not be on social
assistance and become productive citizens.

Mr. Alcock: | will come back as we get into the
program area and ask specifically about some of the
ones that are referenced. | can come back to that in
a minute.

The Premier (Mr. Filmon) during the campaign
made a number of comments about enhancing
immigration in this province. There was discussion
at one time both of possibly establishing a separate
immigration process such as the Province of
Quebec has and other talk about increasing
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immigration quotas. Now earlier, the Minister had
indicated that this branch has responsibility for this
relationship with Ottawa. Have there been any
negotiations around that?

Mr. Gllleshammer: This branch has not been
involved with any negotiations, preliminary or
otherwise, with Ottawa at this time.

Mr. Alcock: Ottawa moved recently to increase
immigration quotas nationally. Did that have any
impact on immigration quotas for this province?

Mr. Gllleshammer: Our percentage of immigrants
coming to Canada has been between 4 percentand
5 percent, so if the number of immigrants at the
national level is increased, there would be a
subsequent increase in this province.

* (2100)

Mr. Alcock: What is the anticipated numerical
increase as aresult of the national change in policy?

Mr. Gllleshammer: We have been receiving
around 6,000 immigrants and with the changesitis
projected that we would receive around 7,000.

Mr. Alcock: One of the concerns that is raised about
immigration through a centre like Winnipeg is that
often newly arrived immigrants do not remain here
in Manitoba—move east and west. Is there any
study done or any indication of how many of them
do stick in this province?

Mr. Gllleshammer: Our department does not have
that information.

Mr. Alcock: There is anentrepreneurialimmigration
program that is designed to give certain special
status to individuals who are prepared to invest
$150,000 in this province. Is that a program that is
administered by this branch, or is that something
that is accessed through I, T and T?

Mr. Gllleshammer: Yes, the Department of I, T and
T is responsible for that program.

Mr. Alcock: When we look at the programs that are
offered here, the Human Resources Opportunity
Program and the Human Resources Opportunity
Centres, these are, if | am following what the
Minister was saying earlier, diversionary programs,
programs attempting to divert people from social
assistance and to build a level of independence and
self-sufficiency? Is that a fair characterization?

Mr. Gllleshammer: Your comment is probably
more apropos to the Employability Enhancement
Programs. The people who access the Human
Resources Centres have other social problems that
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these centres try to deal with. While the objective
certainly is to assist them, they may not become
employable and independent, but the Human
Resources Opportunity Centres attempt to help
them with some of their other problems.

Mr. Alcock: In the draft annual report the branch is
characterized as being responsible for the
development of programs related to, and there are
three areas: Services for Manitoba’'s newcomer
population; employability enhancement for social
assistance; vocational counselling and placement
of severely employment-disadvantaged individuals
into skills training, work experience or work activity.

Now that latter category, is this the category that
the Human Resources Opportunity Program and
the Centres are targeted on?

Mr. Gllleshammer: Yes.

Mr. Alcock: Would this program area consist of
services to mentally handicapped individuals and
physically handicapped individuals?

Mr. Gllleshammer: No, it is not the sheltered
workshops that have the mentally and physically
handicapped.

Mr. Alcock: Then could the Minister characterize
for us severely employment-disadvantaged
individuals?

Mr. Gllleshammer: These are individuals without
educational and training skills who have been
unable to access employment or are not able to, in
some cases, be employed for even short periods of
time.

Mr. Alcock: Is there any understanding of why that
is the case?

Mr. Gllleshammer: In many cases the lack of skills
is something that has never been addressed. They
have a very poor record of any skills at even
attempting to find and hold a job and generally have
been on social assistance.

Mr. Alcock: Of the 3,800 people who are, |
presume, referred because they are dealt with
through the Human Resources Opportunity
Program, which lists as its activities assessment
and referral, and 1,600 through the Human
Resources Opportunities Centres which, if |
understand the budgeting here, seems to provide a
more substantive service. These are neither
mentally handicapped or physically handicapped.
These people are all basically illiterate, uneducated,
untrained?



December 10, 1990

Mr.Gllleshammer:Yes. These are people who had
very little training or education and have not been
employed for some time. They are not physically or
mentally handicapped, but they may have left the
school system at a young age or simply left without
a lot of skills. The school system provides some
vocational training for some students. There are
others who are in special classes, occupational
entrance classes, occupational skills classes,
where theyhave notrecsived specific training in any
particular vocation. They have a lot of difficulty
accessing work, plus the work ethic that perhaps the
employer is looking for simply is not there. There is
not a job record, very limited communication skills;
often social skills are underdeveloped. They simply
have no work experience or job record on which a
prospective employer can measure them or is
prepared to take a chance on them.

Mr. Alcock: The Canada-Manitoba Agreement on
Employability Enhancement for Social Assistance
Recipients, was that involved at all with these
particular programs, that encompass these
programs?

Mr. Gllleshammer: It is a separate agreement
under the Employability Enhancement Branch.

Mr. Alcock: | am sorry, Madam Acting Chairperson,
but | was being harassed by the Member for St.
Norbert (Mr. Laurendeau), so | just have to ask the
Minister to repeat his statements.

Mr. Gllleshammer: It is a separate agreement
under the Employability Enhancement.

Mr. Alcock: The Human Resources Opportunity
Program is a separate program under the
Canada-Manitoba Agreement for Employability
Enhancement for Social Assistance Recipients? |
mean, which is who?

(Mr. Deputy Chairman in the Chair)
*(2110)
Mr. Gllleshammer: That is what | was referring to
as being a separate agreement under the
Employability Enhancement.
Mr. Alcock: The support for these centres is a
separate agreement.

Mr. Gllleshammer: The centres are supported
under the Canada Assistance Plan.

Mr. Alcock: The Canada-Manitoba Agreement on
Employability Enhancement for Social Assistance
Recipients, is that an ongoing agreement under the
Canada Assistance Plan?
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Mr. Gllleshammer: It is separate from CAP.
Mr. Alcock: Is that agreement still in force?
Mr. Gllleshammer: | am told it is.

Mr. Alcock: Can the Minister tell us what the
cost-sharing arrangements are, if any?

Mr.Gllleshammer: Itis a matching amount. Initially,
whenitstartedin 1987, the province putin $3 million
and the feds put in $3 million.

Mr. Alcock: When it started, the two Governments
put in $3 million each in '87. Is that an annual
commitment, or is that the total ongoing program?
What is the size of the program today?

Mr. Gllleshammer: The total amount of the
program now is $12 million.

Mr. Alcock: Is it $12 million on an annual basis? Is
that still shared 50-50 with Ottawa?

Mr. Gllleshammer: It is still shared 50-50 by
Ottawa, but the agreement has expired. It is on an
extension at this time, and it is being negotiated.

Mr. Alcock: When did it expire, what date ?

Mr.Gllleshammer: It wentfrom '87 to '89, and ithas
been extended from that period. It is under
negotiation.

Mr. Alcock: Has the Minister been able to anticipate
when a new agreement will be in place?

Mr. Gllleshammer: The discussions are just
beginning. It is an ongoing thing, so it is difficult to
put a time limit on it.

Mr. Alcock: | notice on page 105 of the
Supplementary Estimates when we look at the
overall budget for the Human Resources
Opportunity Program, there is about $200,000 in
recoveries from other appropriations.

Can the Minister tell us what is being recovered
from which appropriation?

Mr.Gllleshammer: The Selkirk training plantis now
a human resources centre. It makes some
equipment for parks under Natural Resources, and
that is recovered from Natural Resources.

Mr. Alcock: Tables and hibachis—$200,000 worth.
That recovery is entirely from Parks and Natural
Resources?

Mr. Gllleshammer: Yes, | am told it is from Natural
Resources.

Mr. Alcock: On the Employability Enhancement
Programs that are then offered under this
agreement, and there are a number of them



2757

referenced in the Supplementary Estimates, and a
number of them that are detailed in this evaluation
that was tabled, the Single Parent Job Access
Program, the Job Access for Young Adults—I guess
thatis itin terms of the ones that were reviewed. The
Community Based Employability Grants, | am not
certain whether those were before referred to as the
Employment Access for the Disabled, perhaps.

What happened to the range of programs then?
If these are the four programs, Single Parent Job
Access, Gateway, Job Access for Young Adults and
Community Based Employability Projects (the
Grants Program), then the environmental resource
projects, Employment Access for the Disabled, Job
Transition for Youth, and the municipal-based
projects, have they gone out of existence, do they
no longer function?

Mr. Gllleshammer: Those ones that you
referenced now fall under the last item, the
Community Based Employability Projects.

Mr. Alcock: So what we used to talk about is the
Job Transition for Youth which served 191 program
entrants, which consisted of grants to seven
community agencies to provide counselling, training
and work experience in Brandon, Winnipeg, in the
Northern option, et cetera, that is now captured
under Community Based Employability Projects?

Mr. Gllleshammer: That is correct.

Mr. Alcock: The Employment Access for the
Disabled, which served 87 program entrants, is also
under that, as is the environmental resource
projects, which served 140 people, and the
municipally-based projects, which served 46. Those
are all under the Community Based Employability
Projects Grants Program?

Mr. Gllleshammer: That is correct.

Mr. Alcock: | note, Mr. Deputy Chairperson, that the
total amount of funding for the Community Based
Employability Projects is around $900,000, and in
the programs that | referenced there was
approximately $2.5 million.

So there is a considerable difference in the size
of the programs that existed formally and that are
now captured under the Community Based
Employability Projects and Grants Program. | am
just wondering if the Minister can explain why these
programs were downsized so dramatically?

*(2120)
Mr. Gllleshammer: It has been indicated to me that
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there has not been a downsizing, but that significant
funds are put into the program by the federal
Government.

Mr. Alcock: | am justlooking at this report which the
department did on the diversion fund, and it does
reference amounts against each one of these:
Employment Access for the Disabled is .52 million;
Job Transition for Youth, .9 million; environmental
research projects, .46 million; and municipal-based
projects, .57 million. If we just very quickly add that
up, we find that comes to about 2.45; and, if itis a
50-50 cost-sharing, even if that is the explanation,
that would be about a $1.2 million program, not a
$913,000 program. If | am correct in understanding
the date that this was done, that was for the year
'87-88; we are some three years later.

Mr. Gllleshammer: The report that the Member has
that we gave him shows the combined
federal-provincial support for those. What we are
talking about here is the provincial budget, and it
shows the amount of money that we have put into
the program.

Mr. Alcock: Yes, | understood it when the Minister
said it the first time, but | also understood, unless |
misunderstood what he said earlier, that this was a
50-50 cost-sharing program, so that for every dollar
that the province put in the feds put in a dollar. So
twice 913 would be 1.8 million, and yet the total in
these projects that have been collapsed into this one
program line was $2.45 million. There just seems to
be a shortfall there; | am just trying to figure out why.

Mr. Gllleshammer: The program, when it started in
1987, called for each level of Government to put in
$3 million. Now that program shows both the
province and the federal Government putting in
between $5 million and $6 million, so the amount of
money has increased. It may show up in different
appropriations, but there has been a significant
increase in the amount of money putinto this by both
the province and the federal Government.

Mr. Alcock: | am not disputing that at all. | am just
trying to understand where that has gone because
certainly the way that money was allocated in the
report that we were given is different from the way
it seems to be allocated here. | mean, presumably
that additional money may have gone into the
Gateway Program which is not referenced in this
study and may provide the difference. Across a
range of programs that you were offering before, the
amount of money and presumably the number of
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people being supported would seem to have
decreased rather substantially.

Mr. Gllleshammer: We are not sure just what
figures you are looking at. Again, | would repeat that
the total amount of funding that is put into that has
increased. You know, you reference the Gateway
Program which is a new program. The amount of
money put into those others has not decreased.

Mr. Alcock: This is the report that the department
tabled at the beginning of the Estimates process.
Again, if you go through and add up the number of
people that are listed here against these various
lines, it totals 464 people served in the programs
that are the subject of this report.

Onpage 107 of the Supplementary Estimates you
say Community Based Employability Projects will
provide grant funding to assist approximately 300
clients. Three hundred is a smaller number than
464, and that would seem to be consistent with the
decrease in the funding to that particular area, not
the overall program, but just to this particular area.
There may be very good reasons for it. Maybe these
programs were not as effective, and you have
chosen to reprioritize in some way.

Mr. Gllleshammer: The report that we gave you
earlier was a combined federal-provincial analysis
of those programs. The budget that we are going
through on a line-by-line basis here is the provincial
budget. That may well account for the difference in
the figures that you are referring to.

Mr. Alcock: Do you only account for the number of
participants that are supported by your half of the
funding?

Mr. Gllleshammer: | am told that is the way we do
it.

Mr. Alcock: The federal Government then operates
a portion of this program thatis independent of these
programs?

Mr. Gllleshammer: Yes.

Mr. Alcock: Unlike other cost-sharing programs
that have provincial delivery and the federal
Government simply provides certain funds, the
federal Government also operates a companion
program in the same program areas alongside of the
provincial Government programs that deliver
services to essentially the same clientele.

Mr. Gllleshammer: That is correct.

Mr. Alcock: That is something | was unaware of,
and it is interesting to note. | was not aware that the
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federal Government was going to maintain a
program delivery capacity. We will have to ask them
those questions federally.

On the Job Access for Young Adults program and
the Job Transition for Youth programs that are
referenced in this evaluation, there seems to be a
relatively poor performance in the program.

In fact, if one wanted to be critical, and | am, of
course not wanting to be that way, butif one wanted
to be, you could almost make the case that young
people were hurtby going into this program because
the comparison group did betterin employment than
the group in that program. In fact it says here on
page, thatis Roman numeral XI, Conclusion 10 that
the youth comparison group, that is the
non-program group, but the group that was drawn
to act as a reference group generally performed
better than the youth program cohort. | am
wondering if that rather startling finding has been
evaluated and we have some explanation for that.

Mr. Gllleshammer: Yes, | can provide you with an
explanation. There are several possible reasons
why the youth comparison group of non-participants
generally performed better than youth program
participants. The small sample size could mean that
the youth comparison group was not representative
of youth participation. Furthermore, there are
indications that youth program participants were
less educated and less job ready than the overall
youth population on social assistance.

Mr. Alcock: Was it an evaluation area or is it the
evaluation group that failed and that is why we have
this particular conclusion?

Mr. Gllleshammer: There may have been a
weakness in the evaluation, and/or there may be a
problem with the design of the program. That is
something we will have to look at.

Mr. Alcock: Has the current Job Access for Young
Adults Program been significantly modified as a
result of these findings?

Mr.Gllleshammer: | am told that the training period
has been made longer.

Mr. Alcock: Is that the only modification?

Mr. Gllleshammer: They are also attempting to do
a more thorough job of the initial screening so that
people are more job ready.

Mr. Alcock: | note the Minister is studying—is there
more to be said to that?

Mr. Gllleshammer: No.
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Mr. Alcock: The solution to that then is to choose
participants who are more skillful than the ones who
were chosen before. Is that what the Minister just
said?

Mr. Gllleshammer: Yes, the screening process
hopefully will identify individuals who are more
ready for the program.

Mr. Alcock: That strikes me as a rather odd way to
deal with the program that s targeted on people who
are seriously employment disadvantaged. | mean, if
youwere to screen in just university graduates your
success rate might be absolutelyfantastic. | thought
the rationale for these programs was to target them
on those people who were least able to find
employment.

Mr. Gllleshammer: Well, it is an attempt to match
the interest that individuals have with training that
they may be more successful with. | think that
certainly | agree that if you wanted to have a 100
percent success rate, perhaps you might get some
university-trained individuals. | do not know whether
there are such people.

Mr. Alcock: | am particularly interested in it,
because we are saying then that these programs
unlike—l mean there are lots of Education and
Training programs that youth in particular can
access through the federal Government or through
the Department of Education, but we say that we
retain these programs in this particular department
because itis targeted on those people who are most
in need, basically those people who cannot access
other forms of support and as a result are on social
assistance.

* (2130)

Yetthen we see that our program has a very low
success rate, so we then begin to screen out those
people who are at the bottom end. What then
happens to those people who are screened out of
these programs?

Mr. Gllleshammer: | think it is a constant challenge
to try and find programs which are going to be
suitable for individuals and, as you have indicated
before, where the success rate was not very high,
what we are trying to do is provide some
alternatives. | think the Member well knows that
there are people out there who are very, very difficult
to find appropriate training for. If we are going to
provide training for individuals who are unemployed,
itis best we use our resources where we have some
chance of success. If there are new and different
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programs that are going to meet the needs of
individuals whom we have had great difficulty with,
we would be quite interested in knowing about them.

I think we cannot give up. It is an ongoing
challenge to try and matchindividuals outthere with
training and try and make them productive members
of society.

Mr. Alcock: It is interesting. This review is generally
a fairly positive one and does suggest that overall
these programs do tend to leave better than half of
the people somewhat better off than they were
before, with the notable exception of youth. In
addition, this effect, relative to the reference group,
would seem to suggest that the youth programs are
actually harming youth, although the Minister is
quite right. In a small sample size and the difficulty
in choosing a control group and all that, that could
be a fallacious finding.

It also goes on to say in the conclusions on page
9 that all program cohorts, with the exception of
youth, were able to increase the employability of the
participants, that this program did not seem to have
an effect on increasing the employability. In
conclusion three it says, participants from all
program cohorts except youth were financially
better off. So this seems to have failed youth across
a whole range of indicators.

If 1 understood the Minister's response, the
program change as a result of this has been simply
to lengthen the period that people spend in the
program and to screen out those people who might
be contributing to this less than happy conclusion.

Mr. Gllleshammer: Rather than to characterize it
as a failure for youth, | would suggest maybe we
have been less successful in that area. | think we
have to continue to try and find programs that will
succeed.

There are other factors that | think we have to
consider with young people, with our youth. In many
cases they have experienced a lack of success in
the public school system. They have experienced a
lack of success in accessing jobs in the real world.
The total seriousness of their situation has not yet
come home to them. It may be just a matter of time
asthey gain some maturity, albeit a very difficult time
for them, for parents and others in society.

If we can find alternatives that are going to provide
this education for them, we simply may have to wait
until they grow a little older and maybe they are more
apt to take to some sort of training or education.
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Often youth simply are not ready at a particular
time to take seriously the opportunities that are
placed in front of them. | think that in cases where
we have failed to enhance the employability of
young people, it just means that we have to try
again. | am sure the Member could even think of
cases where the same training or other training
becomes meaningful simply because they have
advanced in age and perhaps gained some
experience. We just have to find appropriate
programs for them at the appropriate time.

Mr. Alcock: | think that actually is a rather
enlightened position, frankly. | do thinkitis quite true
that we often | think as a system abuse some youth
by trying to serve them when they are not ready for
it. Sometimes letting them fail a little can be a very
healthy thing.

| shall leave that one for a moment. Can the
Minister talk a little bit about the Single Parent Job
Access Program? Were there significant changes to
that program as a result of this evaluation?

Mr. Gllleshammer: After the evaluation of the
program, one of the items that was added was to
provide training in specific skills, a component that
was not there previously.

Mr. Alcock: The evaluation indicated | believe, if |
am referencing the right page, that 66 percent of the
participants successfully completed their programs.
Ninety dayslater 42 percentwere continuing towork
and another 11 percentwereintraining foranimpact
rate, as they define it here, of about 563 percent.
Roughly half of the people in this particular case of
the 675 people whom we are attempting to divert
from furtherreliance onincome support would seem
to be achieving that goal. Would that rate be
consistent with the program today?

Mr. Gllleshammer: Yes.

Mr. Alcock: | think then that number in the 675
sole-support parents who are listed in the Expected
Results on page 107 of the Supplementary
Estimates, if it was—I mean the impact rate that is
listed in the study is 63 percent but, for the sake of
this discussion, let us say it is half, which would be
337 and a half. Let us not quibble. What would be
the cost of maintaining that many people on income
support for ayear?

* (2140)

Mr. Gllleshammer: It depends on the structure of
the family, but an estimate is that it would cost
$8,000 to $10,000 per family.
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Mr. Alcock: Then if itis $8,000 to $10,000, and this
particular program has a budget of about $1.9
million, would it be fair to characterize this as a
no-cost program, that in fact we are saving from
Income Security in the removal of those 337 people,
in this example, than we are spending in the
operation of the program?

Mr. Gllleshammer: With all of these programs, the
anticipated and hoped-for result would be that there
is a net benefit to society, to Government and to the
individuals involved.

Mr. Alcock: That is the anticipated and hoped for.
Is that the department’s experience with this? Are
we in fact finding that the diversionary programs are
reducing the social assistance caseload and, as a
result, lowering our cost in those areas?

Mr. Gllleshammer: As the Member knows, there
has not been a decrease in the numbers accessing
social allowance, butitis probably slowing down the
increase that we would experience.

Mr. Alcock: Yes, has there been a study of that? Is
there any indication that is the—I know we
hypothesized that, but is that what is in fact
happening? Is the rate of growth—has it noticeably
slowed in any statistical way, given the onset of
these programs?

Mr. Gllleshammer: Our distinct impression is that
it is slowing down the rate of growth and, just like
any prevention programs, it is difficult to measure
something that did not happen.

Mr. Alcock: Waell, we shall not debate that at any
greatlength. You are right, itis very difficult. Can the
Minister just help me understand the difference
between Job Access for Young Adults and Gateway
other than the size of the programs?

Mr. Gllleshammer: The Job Access for Young
Adults targets individuals in the age range of 18 to
24, whereas Gateway is a program that is open to
recipients of social assistance who are 18 and over.

Mr. Alcock: Yes, | read that part, but 18 or over
would presumably include that group between 18
and 24.

Mr. Gllleshammer: Maybe | could just give you a
little more information. Gateway is a combination of
up to 52 weeks of classroom and on-the-job training
for social assistance recipients 18 years of age or
over.

The Job Access for Young Adults is a combination
of up to 52 weeks of programming, which combines
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in-school training and on-the-job work experience
for 18- to 24-year-olds leading to employment in
high demand labour market areas.

I am not sure if that helps or not.

Mr. Alcock: | am more interested in trying to
understand how you differentiate between two
19-year-olds who come looking for assistance. How
does one get streamed to Gateway and one to this
other program?

Mr. Gllleshammer: The Job Access for Young
Adults really targets the 18- to 24-year-olds and
operates only in Winnipeg. The Gateway operates
in Winnipeg, Brandon and The Pas and, by and
large, services people who are older. | guess if the
Member is pointing out that a 19-year-old presents
himself in Winnipeg, the fact of the matter is that
individual could be slotted into either one or the
other.

Mr. Deputy Chalrman: The hour being close to 10
p-m., | would like to ask guidance of the committee
if there would be a will to sit after 10 p.m.

Mr. Alcock: | believe, Mr. Deputy Chairperson, that
question was asked in the Chamber earlier and
unanimous consent was denied. However, | believe
that the committee can proceed to sit after ten
o'clock should a majority of the committee Members
wish to do so. So asking for some kind of—what |
would like to say, | have to be consistent with the
position taken by our Party in the House and say no.

Mr. Deputy Chalrman: Is that the wish of the
committee?

Mr. Gllleshammer: No, let us finish.

Mr. Alcock: Waell, after a valiant battle, | must
accede to the wishes of the committee.

Mr.Deputy Chalrman: Thenitis agreed. We will sit
past ten.

Mr. Alcock: If the Member—Bob, are you from La
Verendrye? Where are you from? -(interjection)-
Turtle Mountain. Yes, the Member for Turtle
Mountain (Mr. Rose) asks if he can leave now. | am
prepared to give him permission to do so. | can
assure him there will be no more votes at this point
in the evening. -(interjection)- Oh, well | do notknow
if thatis an equal.

Okay, | would like to talk a little bit about the
Immigration and Settlement Services then at this
point. | appreciate the Minister's assistance with the
employment programs, and we will come back and
talk about them in a few minutes.
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* (2150)
An Honourable Member: Did we pass something?

Mr. Alcock: No. We would not want to break a
tradition at this point in the evening, would we?

in the Expected Results under Immigration and
Settlement Services, 09-6D-4, we talk about
the—this is on page 109—admission of
approximately 30 special-needs refugees. | am
wondering if the Minister can explain who this group
is.

Mr. Gllleshammer: Yes, | can read some
information into the record for you. This program is
based on a 1981 agreement between the Minister
of Labour and Manpower and the federal Minister of
Employment and Immigration: facilitates private
sponsorship and the resettlement in Manitoba of
refugees with special needs. Manitoba will admit up
to 30 cases a year under this program. Refugees
admitted under the terms of this program are
inadmissible according to Canada’s normal
selection criteria.

There are three components of this SPAR
program. The first involves the admission of
unaccompanied minors who have not reached their
18th birthday and have been separated from their
parents. The second involves persons whose
physical or mental health does not conform with
standards established by Health and Welfare
Canada and are termed or deemed medically
inadmissible. The third involves settlement-risk
refugee families and at-risk refugee women.

Mr. Alcock: There were unaccompanied minors,
people with physical disabilities and medical
conditions who might not otherwise be admissible.
Then he mentioned women of some sort. Could he
tell me what that last category was?

Mr.Gllleshammer: You are right. The third involves
settlement-risk refugee families and at-risk refugee
women.

Mr. Alcock: How do we determine if someone is at
risk? Is at-risk in the country that they are coming
from, or is at-risk because of special needs here?

Mr.Gllleshammer: The at-risk referstothe refugee
camps in which they are located.

Mr. Alcock: Did the Minister talk about
settlement-risk?

Mr. Gllleshammer: Yes, | indicated that the third
group involves settlement-risk refugee families.
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That refers to large families who would have
difficulty getting resettlement in other countries.

Mr. Alcock: Presumably through the federal
immigration people and others who are working in
these camps, they determine that a certain number
of individuals or families are at high risk and under
this program we admit 30 of them?

Mr.Gllleshammer: That is correct.

Mr. Alcock: Then in the Bridging Cultures Program,
where we talk about at-risk immigrant families, we
are talking about people who are at risk and
somehow within our community, as opposed to
being at risk in the camps or in their own countries.

Mr.Gllleshammer: Yes, there is a distinction there.

Mr. Alcock: In the Bridging Cultures Program, the
being at-risk here in Canada is at risk of what?

* (2200)

Mr. Gllleshammer: These are individuals and
families who would have resettlement difficulties
here. There is perhaps some turmoil in the family,
andtheyare having difficulty getting resettled in this
country.

Mr. Alcock: How do we go about identifying those
families who are at risk here, versus the other
however many come in?

Mr.Gllleshammer: | think the Member knows that.
The individuals we are talking about in this program
are identified by the federal Governmentbefore they
are brought to Canada.

With the program you are asking about that our
Government sponsors, the families at risk are
identified by the ethnocultural communities and
brought to our attention.

Mr. Alcock: When | look at the numbers that are
listed in the Expected Results here, we have 500
immigrants and refugees through ImmigrantAccess
Service, related counselling services to
approximately 500 newcomers and then the 30
special needs refugees.

Would these two groups of 500 be 500 different
individuals, or is there any cross-over between
those two groups?

Mr. Gllleshammer: They are different groups but
there may be some crossover.
Mr. Alcock: Would it be fair to say that of the 6,000

or soimmigrants, soon to be 7,000 or so immigrants,
that come each year to this province, that roughly
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some number around or slightly below 1,000 are
receiving direct services from this branch?

Mr. Gllleshammer: That is correct.

Mr. Alcock: | understand then how the 30 special
needs refugees is a Manitoba commitment to the
international community and to the national
immigration program. The 500 immigrants, or the
two groups of 500 that get service through these
other programs, how are they identified and how do
they accessthose services?

Mr. Gllleshammer: They are drawn to our attention
by the ethnocultural community, but we also have
access workers who may encounter these
individuals as well.

Mr. Alcock: There is an indication of 26 new
positions and 29 previous placements for recent
immigrants in professional and technical operations
under Program Recognition. Is this recognition of
professional credentials possessed by people from
other countries?

Mr. Gllleshammer: Yes.

Mr. Alcock: Can the Minister describe this program
to me? This is an issue here that has been
discussed at some length relative to the medical
community, but | also know that within my own
riding, there are alarge number of Polishimmigrants
with training in dentistry, and within the dental
profession in general, who are in much the same
position as some of the doctors that were talked
about.

| am just wondering how people access this
program and what professions it is reaching out to?

(Mrs. Shirley Render, Acting Chairman, in the
Chair)

Mr. Gllleshammer: This program is to encourage
the creation of new permanent professional and
technical positions by providing wage assistance to
private sector businesses. By targeting these newly
created positions for qualified landed immigrants
and recently naturalized Canadians, this program
will assist newcomers in obtaining meaningful
Canadian work experience in their fields of
expertise.

I read into the record earlier the types of positions
that we are talking about. There are people like lab
assistants, dental technicians, aircraft mechanics,
accountants, legal assistants and others. | guess it
is so important that we work to assimilate these
individuals into our society and into the job market.
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At the same time, | think it is important that the
standards are maintained.

| am just personally aware of a person who was
a health care practitioner who was allowed to
practise her profession but then failed very narrowly
to pass the exam and as a result will have to re-do
the exam | believe in six months.

As | thought about it and talked to one of my
colleagues, there is a tremendous liability thatwould
exist if a person like that was permitted to continue
practising. So | say that we have to be very careful
in evaluating individuals like this to see that they do
meet a minimum standard.

Mr. Alcock: Yes, | certainly would support the
Minister on that. | think the real question is, do they
have an opportunity to access the certification
programs and apply for the certification in this
country so their skills can be shared with all of us?

I have no further questions.

The Acting Chalrman (Mrs. Render): Item 6.(d)(1)
Branch Operations, $145,700—pass; (2) Human
Resources Opportunity Program,
$6,156,100—pass; (3) Employability
Enhancement, $4,956,800—pass; (4) Immigration
and Settlement Services, $1,133,600—pass.

* (2210)

(Mr.Marcel Laurendeau, Deputy Chairman, in the
Chair)

Mr. Deputy Chalrman: Resolution 52: RESOLVED
that there be granted to Her Majesty a sum not
exceeding $65,197,600 for Family Services for the
financial year ending the 31st day of March,
1991—pass.

The last item to be considered for the Estimates
of the Department of Family Services is item (a)
Minister’'s Salary. At this point we request that the
Minister's staff leave the table for consideration of
this item.

ltem 1.(a), shall the item pass?

Mr. Alcock: | do understand that when the
Minister's Party was in Opposition they had a
tradition of proposing all sorts of innovative
amendments to this particular item. | believe there
were quantities of asphalt and other such items
offered in substitution for the Minister’s salary.

I'would like to close this by not proposing such an
amendment. | think that if there is any Minister in
Government that earns his salary, itis this Minister.
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| want to just take advantage of this moment to
thank the Minister very sincerely for the time, effort
and energy that he and his staff have put in, for his
openness and his willingness to share information.
I cannotrecall an Estimates process where we have
had such open discussion on substantive issues
andsuchrealinformationpresented and discussed.
| think that is to the credit of this particular Minister.

| want to thank the staff because they worked
extremely hard and those little misses that came out
each meeting | found extremely helpful. | hope that
this characterizes an attitude with this department
that will continue into the future.

| found this an interesting test drive if you like of
this department and sort of a warm-up to the real
Estimates that will take place in the spring. For this
Minister, like a lot of new Ministers, occupies a
unique position in that he is new to the department
so it is more difficult for him to be held accountable
for some of the activities that the department may
have undertaken. This will not be the case in the
spring.

The Minister now has a period of time tofocuson
his department to deal with many issues that
confront him and to put forward in the next budget,
which will be his first budget, something thatreflects
his philosophy and his beliefs about this
department. | look forward to engaging in the
examination of those Estimates. | hope at that time
that we will see a department that has spent some
time examining its organization like the Minister has
indicated, that has done a little more work to
anticipate some of the things that impact on this
department.

If there was one thing | was a little distressed with,
whichwashow little this departmentlooks down the
road. | hope that the Minister will have had an
opportunity to address some of the concerns that
were raised in Rehab and Community Living, and
particularly look at the way in which some of the
attempts to downsize the institutions have perhaps
not been as successful as we have hoped.

| hope that by the time we are next at this table
that we will have some substantive agreements in
place with the Child and Family Services agencies
so that we have some comfort that these agencies
will not continue to be so damaged as they have
been in this past year.

Also, | want to share with the Minister one thing
though that occurred to me when we talked about
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the Income Security area, because we did talk
during the Estimates about caseloads of 240 per
worker and those sorts of things. | have asked
people who contact me—one of the concerns that
gets raised is how difficult it is to access help. When
we develop a system that forces people to go back
to these overworked workers, it often creates
frustration for the workers as well as the recipients,
but just to give the Minister some feeling for that |
asked all of the recipients that | talked to to keep
records for me about their experiences with the
department.

| encountered a person the other night at an
environmental meeting in my riding who told me that
she tried to call her worker the other day, and she
had to try 71 times before the phone would ring
because she got a busy signal every other time.
When the phone finally rang, it rang 32 times and
nobody answeredit, so she hung up, thoughtmaybe
she was calling the wrong number, hung up and
called back again. It rang 16 times the second time
before it was answered, and when it was answered,
she was put on hold for eight minutes and 56
seconds. Then she finally got a hold of her worker
who asked her why she had not called sooner.

I just think it is illustrative of the kind of pressure
that these people are under, and | do not hold the
workers entirely accountable for that because with
workloads of 240 cases each, and with the kind of
pressures that they are under, it is no wonder that
these kinds of situations occur. Itleads to enormous
pressure on everybody concerned and great
frustration on the part of all who are involved.

| must say | do not understand the rationale for
organizing this last division. | think to try to jam
together programs that are so desperate and so not
a part of each other into a division simply for
organizational reasons is silly—just to make the
organizational chart look pretty. | hope, and the
Minister has indicated, that there will be some effort
at reorganizing both the regional operations across
the three areas that deliver regional services for
areas, | guess, if you include the private agencies. |
would hope that there is some better definition of the
boundaries between the employment, immigration
and day care programs into the future.

.This is not a department that is going to have its
problems resolved overnight, or even in this next
budget, or this next decade, or probably within my
lifetime.
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| would just like to close by wishing the Minister,
the staff and all those people whoare so affected by
this department the very best as you attempt to do
what you have before you.

Once again, thank you very much.

Ms. Barrett: Mr. Deputy Chairman, | did want to
have the final word this time in this division.

Iwould like to also share some of my feelings having
gone through this approximately 43 or 44 hours of
Estimates. It has been a very long, and | might say,
in many ways grueling experience, although it has
been a very positive one too. | have appreciated the
good humour | think almost more than anything else
of the Minister. | can only assume | know what he
has gone through, this being his first Estimates
process as a brand new Minister. | have a bit of an
understanding of that seeing as how it is my first
Estimates process as the critic. | will admit with
complete honesty that it is much easier to be the
critic than it is to be the Minister, particularly the first
time and patrticularly in this department.

This department has the third highest amount of
money spentonit, but | would say arguably—I know
that Honourable Members here would perhaps
disagree with me—but | think in many ways itis the
most important department of the Government. It
deals withissues, people and problems that are the
most intractable that we as a society have to face.
It deals with those problems when they have
become the most problematic.

* (2220)

We have not yet managed to get to where
prevention and intervention at early stages are
something that we are able to do with great
regularity. | have begun to understand, and only
begun to understand, the complexity of this
department, therange ofthis department. I think that
there are problems with the way itis organized. | am
sure there have been problems with the way these
services have been organized since the very
beginning. | anticipate that this department, which |
think of as a living thing, will continue to change and
evolve over time and would anticipate there might
even be some changes between now and the next
time we meet.

| have learned a great deal. | will admit with the
Honourable Member for Osborne (Mr. Alcock), | will
agree with him that this was a learning experience
for all of us, and that the next budget Estimate
process will probably be different than this one.
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| think that the Minister has stated several times
that we are in a period of transition and in a period
of stabilization. He has made that point clear to not
only Members in the House and in this Estimates
process, but also to organizations that have been
meeting with him and have been asking for
meetings with him and have been asking for
direction and assistance.

| think that the department, the Minister, the staff,
the programming will all be held more accountable
this next budget. We will all be looking, as we all
should be looking, very closely at whatthe programs
are, how the department is delivering those
programs, how it is meeting its goals and operating
principles which I think are excellent. | think that they
certainly cover all of the basic areas.

| think this Government this year has put a little
more emphasis on some of these goals and
principles than others. | would disagree with some
of the emphasis that has been placed on some of
the goals and operating principles. | am looking very
forward to seeing how the Minister and the
department work through the budget-making
process in coming forward with the Estimates next
year.

| certainly hope that we are able to start the
process on time, more or less on time, so that we
can get through the process. | think it is very
important for organizations and agencies to know
what they are going to have to spend early in the
fiscal year. Again, that is something that the entire
Government, both Government and Opposition, will
have to work on to make sure that process does
come to pass on time.

| will not say it has been fun. It has been a very
long process, but | think ithas been a very important
one. | have learned a lot and many, many elements
of it have been very enjoyable. | do give the Minister
alot of credit for having gone through a very difficult
first two months in a very difficult position. | think he
has handled himself very well. | congratulate him for
that and wish him all the best in the holiday season.

Mr. Gllleshammer: | would just close by saying that
I sincerely appreciate the kind words of not only the
Member for Osborne (Mr. Alcock), but the Member
for Wellington (Ms. Barrett) as well. There does
seem to be a recognition that this department has
had some difficulties in the past. The Member for
Osborne said he did not think things would change
in his lifetime. | think things have changed and will
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continue to change, and hopefully we will leave it
more positive and better than we found it.

| would say to the Member for Wellington (Ms.
Barrett), your Leader had indicated to me that
Mother Teresa could not run this department and
also assured me that | was not Mother Teresa. One
of your caucus Members referred to this department
as the department of human misery.

There seemsto be that sort of recognition that this
department is fraught with problems that people
have adifficulttime resolving. The challenge | would
throw out to the Member for Wellington (Ms. Barrett)
and her counterpart, the Member for Osborne (Mr.
Alcock) is that maybe we can work together to bring
about some positive changes.

| think this department has been much, much too
easy to play politics with, and | do not think we serve
the people of Manitoba very well by doing that. |
appreciate the kind words that she has said this

" evening and also the Member for Osborne. Maybe

the three of us can work togethera little more to bring
about some positive changes.

Mr. Deputy Chalrman: item 1.(a) Minister's Salary
$20,600—pass.

Resolution 47: RESOLVED that there be granted
to Her Majesty a sum not exceeding $7,069,400 for
Family Services for the financial year ending the
31st day of March, 1991—pass.

This completes consideration of the Estimates of
the Department of Family Services.

The time being after 10 p.m., committee rise.

SUPPLY—ENVIRONMENT

Madam Chalrman (Loulse Dacquay): Order,
please. Would the Committee of Supply come to
order, please. The Committee of Supply will
continue to consider the Estimates of the
Department of Environment.

We are considering item 2. Environmental
Management.

Mr. Paul Edwards (St. James): Madam
Chairperson, when we last were considering these
Estimates | had just put a question to the Minister
about sewage lagoons and septic fields, and
specific to sewage lagoons, at the outset, | wonder
if he remembers the question? Can he answer it, or
would he like me to repeat it?

Hon. Glen Cummings (Minister of Environment):
If | remember, the Member was asking the method
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of enforcement on sewage lagoons and some
implication of whether or not sewage lagoons
function in our environment.

Certainly the opinion of myself and | think the
department that sewage lagoons will operate under
Canadian environment, Manitoba environment if
you will—all licences require monitoring of those
lagoons and their discharges.

Mr. Edwards: | see the Minister is going to be
standing. He and | both are suffering, | think, from
ailments. Perhaps it is time to get this over with.
-(interjection)- | do not speak for my friend in the
other Party, but | am not in a particularly fit state
myself tonight.

I have a letter which | am prepared to table from
the Premier (Mr. Filmon) dated August 20 of this
year to Mr. Dalmyn which indicates that the Premier
has been advised by the Department of
Environment that they were undertaking a major
review of the private sewage disposal systems
regulation under The Environment Act on a priority
basis. | wonder if the Minister can give us a report
on how that review is going?

Mr. Cummings: Yes, there has been an internal
group that has done a major redraft of the
regulations, and it has had some public input
because | know Mr. Dalmyn has had an opportunity
to comment on it. There will be further public
discussion and then the regs should be finalized.

Mr.Edwards: The Minister and his department may
be aware of a report which arose out of a conference
sponsored, | believe, by the federal Department of
Environment, and | believe if | am not mistaken, it
was approximately 1985. That report has been
specifically drawn to the department's attention
repeatedly by Mr. Dalmyn who is a constituent of
mine and who | have had the opportunity to meet
with on a number of occasions.

* (2010)

Thatreport states in part, page 9, withrespectto
sewage lagoons, that viruses are regularly found in
lagoon effluents and that cold climate lagoons
somehow seem to contribute to the longevity of
those micro-organisms, then goes on to state that
the lagoons allow these micro-organisms to escape
thermal shock by allowing them time to acclimatize
to the cold environment. The micro-organism is
quite dangerous in fact to public health if allowed to
enter the water stream in any significant numbers,
remaining viable in cold climate lagoons.
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Has the department considered those
conclusions which stem from that report, and are
they still convinced that cold climate lagoons in this
province do work to do what they are supposed to
do?

Mr. Cummings: Thedepartmentsays they are well
aware of the report, and they are tracking this type
of contamination.

Mr. Edwards: If | am not mistaken, and if the
department is well aware of the report, they can
confirm what year—I think it is 1985. If they are
tracking the problem, or considering it, what have
the conclusions been? Do cold climate sewage
lagoons do all they are intended to do or not?

Mr. Cummings: Yes, they do.

Mr. Edwards: Does the Minister say, does his
department say that this conclusion from this report
is totally fallacious, without merit? Is that the
conclusion we are to draw?

Mr. Cummings: The conclusions are not false,
however, neither should we panic. We should put
them in context. That is, there can be situations
during cold weather when there might be some
levels that would be detectable. That is why we are
tracking and monitoring to make sure that nothing is
allowed to get to a level that we would consider a
concern. Many times | suppose, the management of
the lagoon itself, in cold weather, can provide the
margin of safety that is required.

Mr. Edwards: It has just come to my attention that
in fact the report is 1987 which | have been quoting
from. Can the Minister indicate—he says thatthese
lagoons are monitored for bacteria levels to make
sure they are working. Can he indicate the
monitoring process, how oftenitis done, whatin fact
the testing procedure is?

Mr. Cummings: | think | gotthis oneright. | have at
least two out of four that agree. The fact is that these
lagoons are monitored prior to release, that is
usually a twice-a-year release.

Mr. Edwards: Is the checking that is done by the
department—what occurs, if in fact there do appear
to be problems upon checking a sewage lagoon?
What is the process for bringing that to the attention
of the appropriate authorities?

Mr. Cummings: If tests gave results that we were
not satisfied with, there would either be no discharge
or chlorination of the effluent would be required.

Mr. Edwards: This report, which the Minister has
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indicated his department is familiar with, indicates
that the implications to public health loom large of
the then cold climate sewage lagoon system. Atthat
conference, again if | am not mistaken, the Province
of Manitoba was represented. Is the Minister saying
thatthere is no problem? What can he tell us? Is he
saying that our lagoons are not cold climate
lagoons, that is why they were not talking about it?
Is he saying that everything is fine? Or is there a
cause for some concern and some rethinking of our
approach to cold climate sewage lagoons?

Mr. Cummings: The reason that we are monitoring
and controlling them is to make sure that any
concerns are kept under control. | did not say that,
to use the Member’s words, there was no reason for
concern. Obviously any discharge has to be
properly monitored. | think maybe the difference
comes in whether or not the Member believes that
there is regular, ongoing discharges from lagoons
or whether they are controlled discharges, they are
allowed after they have been monitored and tested.
The latter is the case; therefore you can deal with
the problem of cold weather by retention. That is
why the capacity of lagoons in this province are
generally engineered to accommodate that.

Mr. Edwards: Can the Minister indicate if there
have, in fact, been any overflows caused not by
design, but caused by runoff being such that there
were discharges that were perhaps not preferred by
the people running the lagoon, but simply
happened? Have there been any of those in the last
year in this province?

Mr. Cummings: | am told that any overflows which
would come as a result of overfilling of a lagoon are
very rare, and not normally of the nature that would
getinto a stream. If alagoonis overfilled or exceeds
its capacity prior to its normal discharge time, the
department would do testing to see if it was possible
to discharge it, then might well allow discharge
ahead of time if it is within acceptable bounds.

* (2020)

Mr. Edwards: Have there in fact been—I want to
just restate this. | appreciate the Minister’s answer;
itis informative—discharges, which were the result
of emergency situations rather than planned
discharges inwhichthe appropriate guarantees that
the Minister speaks of were not in place? Have there
been any of those in the last year?

I know the Clean Environment Commission in the
reportlread some time ago has certainly noted that
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those have happened on occasion. The
municipalities, for whatever reason, simply do not
have the capacity to take the sewage that is being
created and dump it, or it simply runs out because
the lagoon is not big enough. Is the Minister saying
that has not happened in the last year?

Mr. Cummings: The department does not readily
recall any time when this has happened. It has
probably occurred on one or two occasions across
the province, probably within the course of a year.
Usually what you are talking about—unless the
Member has other information | am not aware of, it
would be where a cell overflowed, and not that raw
sewage was pumped directly, other than under
controlled circumstances. No one can recall when
we have licensed that to occur.

Mr. Edwards: With respect to the discharges that
do occur, whether controlled or otherwise, what is
the potential health hazard of micro-organisms
being put into the environment which then get into
the normal water stream? What are the signs that
discharges have occurred improperly?

Mr. Cummings: | am not sure if | understood the
question. Is the question, would there be
downstream problems for population and what are
the signs of those, or what are the signs if an
inspector goes around and is looking for illegal
discharge? Which one is he referring to?

An Honourable Member: Answer both, if you can.
Mr. Cummings: | am sorry | gave him the idea.

To answer the first one, the obvious would be and
obviously why we insist on drinking water standards
in this province, treatment of water being put into
systems where it is going into households to protect
against just that potential, from whatever source,
whether it is from natural sources or whether it is
from a discharge, the hypothetical question you are
referring to.

In terms of what would the department do to
check, fecal coliform counts would go up and
surface water source would not be potable without
treatment as a result of that. It would be, | take it,
primarily through checking fecal coliform.

Mr. Edwards: Madam Chairperson, | am not a
chemist or have not had training in what the Minister
speaks of, the coliform count. Can the Minister
maybe give me some direction? The testing for E.
Coli, is that what we are speaking of, that coliform
count is an E. Coli count? -(interjection)- Okay.
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Is there also testing done of potential viruses in
sewage lagoons on a regular basis in the province?

Mr. Cummings: No, there is not.

Mr. Edwards: Does the Minister not acknowledge
that in factviruses such as the polio virus, according
to this study of 1987, survived three times as long
as—longer than E. Coli and streptococci or
whatever the other. | understand that would be
another micro-organism, and that viruses in fact,
according to this expert, were regularly found in
lagoon effluence. Does that notwarrantchecking for
viruses in our lagoons?

Mr. Cummings: Madam Chairman, the department
tells me that E. Coli would be a—fecal coliformtests
would be anindicator, and they would automatically
assume the potential of the others being there if they
found that indicator rising.

Mr. Edwards: | take it that the presence or absence
of E. Coli somehow leads the inspectors to know
whether or not viruses exist without doing an
independent virus test. Is that the gist of what the
Minister is saying?

Mr. Cummings: Regulation and the operations
would—the principle that would be followed would
be that they would make the worst case assumption
based on E. Coli tests and take appropriate
measures.

Mr. Edwards: Where E. Coli is present or even
present in acceptable levels, is it impossible that
viruses exist at a level which is not acceptable?

Mr. Cummings: The assumptions are that
statistically you would not expect to find those
viruses if E. Coli could not be found in any samples
taken.

Mr. Edwards: Is that assumption one that is widely
held in the community, because | point to at least
one author who clearly questions that assumption
and recommends the testing of cold climate sewage
lagoons for viruses? Is thatan assumption which the
Minister is prepared to say that his department has
investigated and has determined is an inaccurate
conclusion of this author and one that does not
warrant virus testing specifically in lagoons?

Mr. Cummings: Protocol at the Department of
Environment follows as established under the
Canadiandrinking waterstandards andis, | am told,
widely accepted as being of a high standard and
state of the art in terms of making sure that there is
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safe drinking water available and to extrapolate from
that the processes that we follow.

* (2030)

We believe that we are doing everything that is
required to assure the safety of those who may be
exposed or potentially be exposed under
circumstances that you describe, but that does not
necessarily directly contradictwhat youhave in front
of you, but the process that we are following we feel
is one that is nationally accepted.

Mr. Edwards: Is the protocol the Minister speaks of
specific on the issue of the need to check for viruses
in lagoons in addition to coliform counts?

Mr. Cummings: Perhaps | have done it myself, but
the fact is we are talking about two different
standards. You asked about testing standards that
we use for potable water, but at the same time, in
testing lagoons we would not be following the
drinking water standard in testing the lagoon. We
would be using the drinking water standard to test
water that was going for human consumption.
Therefore you assume that not very many, or no
one, should be drinking untreated water or water
from any other source than one that they can
identify. There certainly are no statistics that support
thatthere are dangers or outbreaks relative to these
diseases that can be in any way traced to water
consumption.

Mr. Edwards: We have been speaking about two
things. Let me ask then, specifically, with respect to
checking the lagoons, not potable water, but
lagoons and the checks thatare done oflagoons by
the department. Do they checkfor viruses? If not, is
there some protocol—was the protocol the Minister
was speaking of specific to potable water? Given
that, is the department notconcerned that there is a
need to do checks for viruses as well as E. Coli, and
have they come to the conclusion that at least this
author is wrong about the need to do that? Perhaps
the Minister can indicate what evidence they have
based their conclusion on, which contradicts this
one?

Mr. Cummings: The department is not rejecting
what conclusions are drawn in that report that you
refer to but is indicating that using the indicator of
coliform that they do not routinely test for viruses,
and to our knowledge, no other jurisdiction does in
this country either in terms of checking lagoons.
There may be greater statistical evidence with the
Department of Health, but we do not have any, and
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therefore feel reasonably secure that the process
that we are using is ensuring the safety of the public.
Youare making the assumption that any discharges
from lagoons could automatically lead to an
outbreak of some type of viral infection.

What | am saying is that the tests that are used
do not allow for discharge when it would deem to be,
usingthe coliform basis, impropertodischarge. | am
sure—and | have notreadthe reportparticularly, but
| have had some communication with Mr. Dalmyn.
It would appear that he is basing alotof conclusions
on thatreport. We do not have statistical evidence
to draw other conclusions beyond what protections
were taken.

Mr. Edwards: Is there statistical evidence that this
report is wrong?

Mr. Cummings: No, we did not say it was wrong. |
said amoment ago we were notdisputing the report,
but neither should the Member necessarily indicate
that the tests that we are using are necessarily
wrong.

Mr. Edwards:Letme ask, because | think perhaps
the Minister was under the assumption we were
talking about potable water when | asked this
question before. Is it necessarily true that, as E. Coli
countgoes up anddown, or levels are presentwhich
are acceptable or not acceptable, you can judge
whether or not there are viruses which might be
harmful to human health, which are also present in
acceptable levels or not acceptable levels. Are the
two linked so that an E. Coli test can tell you whether
or not viruses are present which might be harmful to
human health?

If the department is doing tests and subsequently
allowing certain discharges and certain cases,
whichthe Minister has already talked about, without
checking for viruses and viruses are present, then
they are not insuring that the discharges are in fact
acceptable. Is the Minister saying that the tests for
E. Coli satisfy the need to determine whether or not
harmful viruses are present or not?

Mr. Cummings: The department is satisfied that
testing for E. Coli is a reasonable indicator and, if
you control the E. Coli level, operate the lagoon so
the E. Coli level is maintained at acceptable levels
or below acceptable levels, that also will control any
virus.

Mr. Edwards: Madam Chairperson, | am sure the
Minister is tiring of this line of questioning, | certainly
am. | would like an answer that satisfies my lay
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person’s conclusions which are to be drawn from
this report. This report states that E. Coli actually
does not satisfy all the criteria of an indicator
organism. The Minister seems to be suggesting that
testfor E. Coliis sufficient. It will tell you if the viruses
are present in acceptable or non-acceptable levels.
This report disagrees. Does he disagree with this
report?

| do not think that you canhave both. | do not think
you can say the report is right, but we do not need
totestfor viruses, because this report says you have
to test for viruses if you want to protect the public
health. They say, not testing for viruses has
implications to public health thatloom large.

* (2040)

Mr. Cummings: We have not had any evidence, |
am told, that there have been viral outbreaks that
would indicate that we are not keeping this matter
well under control. The issue is not to dispute the
report that the Member has in his hand. It would
seem that we are well within the national standards
in terms of the testing that we do. To my knowledge,
no other jurisdiction is doing that testing, and that
would indicate to me that if everybody is still using
that as a reasonable standard for testing in this
country, and given the current good health of the
population across the nation, | would suggest that
there is no evidence to show that the process is not
working well. That is not to say that more could not
be done, but | think when you are looking for those
types of additional tests to be imposed on lagoons,
that we have to make sure that we do an adequate
job and do it with a reasonable efficiency.

Mr. Edwards: What would be the additional cost?
Can the Minister indicate, has there been an
investigation by his department as to what the
additional cost would be of doing those types of
checks at the same time as the coliform counts were
done?

Mr. Cummings: | do not think | referred to costs. |
said efficiency. These tests would probably have to
be done by the Department of Health. Ward Lab
does nothave the virology capacity, if thatis the right
term. | was referring to the efficiency of getting the
work done so we could manage the number of
lagoons that we are responsible for.

Mr. Edwards: Madam Chairperson, with respect to
the issue of fluoridation, that is one that as the
Minister knows there has been an ongoing debate
for many, many years.
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Can the Minister indicate what the present view
of the department is with respect to fluoridation and
its impact on public health, whether or not his
department continues to support fluoridation as a
desired input into the water system, and | guess
implicitin thatis whether or notthey agree thatthere
are any environmental impacts which are negative
as a result of fluoride being put into the water
supply?

Mr. Cummings: The question should be more
correctly put to the Department of Health, as the
regulator in that area.

As far as environmental impacts of the adding to
the water, we have not identified that is an issue that
the public needs to be concerned about.

Mr. Edwards: Madam Chairperson, have there
been studies done with respect to the Lake
Winnipeg watershed and the effect offluoride on the
water and soil quality in that area as a result of the
fluoridation of Winnipeg's water supply?

Mr. Cummings: There have been studies of the
effluent from the Winnipeg treatment plants, and
there is no indication that there is fluoride discharge
there that is a problem.

One should also take note of the fact that there is
a low level background fluoride level in the water
that Winnipeg pipes in, in the first place. Coming out
of Shoal Lake there is a fluoride level, and | cannot
recall the figures. It seems to me it is .03. It is
identified. | have seen the figure, but | cannot tell you
whatit is.

The fact is the Shoal Lake water has a
background fluoride level in it that has to be taken
into account presumably when the fluoridation is
done.

Mr. Edwards: Perhaps the Minister can elaborate,
.03 or whatever he is talking about, he says that is
a natural level of fluoride in the water. What level is
pumped in or put in the system before it reaches the
resident of the City of Winnipeg?

Mr. Cummings: Madam Chairman, | should nottry
and go by memory on that detailed a figure. | cannot
quote with certainty what the background fluoride
level is. | was simply putting that fact on the record
so one would not assume that it is unnatural to find
fluoride occurring naturally in the water systems. It
can and does occur naturally, and that was simply
why | indicated that Shoal Lake water, without
anything added to it, has a measurable background
fluoride level.
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Mr. Edwards: Of course not, Madam Chairperson,
but as the Minister is certainly aware, there is a
man-made addition of fluoride to the water supply.
One commentator has indicated thatin 1988, for the
City of Winnipeg, that amounted to some 145 tons.

Can the Minister indicate whether or not that
would be an accurate conclusion as to the amount
of fluoride that was in fact put into Winnipeg's water
supply?

Mr. Cummings: | am not the regulator in that area.
| do not have that information.

Mr. Edwards: Madam Chairperson, that
commentator has also concluded—this | think will
be clearly within the Minister's jurisdiction—that
each year some 21 tons of that are introduced into
the aquifers and stream beds between Indian Bay
and Winnipeg. Now, would the Minister consider
that level of depositing of fluoride in that area a
polluter and something worthy of attention from his
department as environmental pollution?

Mr. Cummings: If | am talking about the same thing
that the Member is, tests were done regarding the
one well-publicized spill that occurred, and certainly
we were unable to detect anything that caused any
changes in the background levels of fluoride. If he
is indicating that it has got into an aquifer
somewhere, perhaps he would like to elaborate.

Mr. Edwards: No, | am simply indicating that, of
course, atIndian Bay, itis my understanding that the
fluoride is introduced—I| may be wrong about that,
but that is my information—and that some 20 to 21
tons, speculators have indicated, ends up back in
the environment, specifically the Lake Winnipeg
watershed area. | wonder, and | gather the Minister
is saying that there is no environmental effect which
should cause any concern, if in fact that level of
tonnage of fluoride each year, some 20 or 21 tons,
will not in fact over time cause environmental
problems.

Mr. Cummings: Itis my understanding that fluoride
does break down in the environment, and that may
well be occurring in Winnipeg's treatment plants
before they are discharged.

* (2050)

Mr. Edwards: The Minister indicates that may well
be happening. Has the department done any testing
to determine what the environmental effect has
been, or is likely to be, with that level of tonnage of
fluoride entering the watershed after it has come
through Winnipeg city’s water system?
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Mr.Cummings: Testing of the rivers and testing, as
I have said earlier, | am referring to discharges from
the plants, we are notdetecting any levels of fluoride
that would cause concern.

Mr. Edwards: Can the Minister indicate with what
regularity that testing is done, and whether or not it
has been done, for instancs, in the lastyear?

Mr. Cummings: River quality is tested monthly.
Mr. Edwards: Where is it tested on the river?

Mr. Cummings: There are both upstream and
downstream tests taken, plus at three points within
the city jurisdiction.

Mr. Edwards: All of those points are tested on a
monthly basis? Is that what the Minister is saying?

Mr. Cummings: It is our understanding that is likely
a correct assumption. We will provide areportto the
Member so that he can go through it.

Mr. Edwards: | would appreciate that, Madam
Chairperson.

When the testing is done, is the testing done on
the protocol that the Minister has indicated
earlier—the potable water protocol? What is the
procedure for testing and specifically, | guess, with
respect to this line of questioning, is the level of
fluoride tested for? | would be interested to know as
well what the testing procedure is for water.

Mr. Cummings: | do not think by memory we can
recall all of the parameters that are included in the
testing, but that will be included in the report—what
the water is tested for. Obviously, the sampling itself
was taken in a prescribed manner so thatwe get the
mostaccurate cross section of the river. | canassure
him that that is being done in a correct manner, that
water quality standards would recognize. The exact
tests, | suppose we could try to list them, but they
are included in the report on the water quality.

Mr. Edwards: In the last year then, what have the
downstream tests told the Minister and the
department about the quality of water coming out of
the Winnipeg area?

Mr. Cummings: One of the major concerns that we
have always had is the high bacterial count of water
exiting the city’s jurisdiction. That is why we are now
presently working with the city to get additional
treatment at the treatment plants.

Mr. Edwards: Is water quality also tested in the
Assiniboine and in the Seine River, for instance, in
the City of Winnipeg? Can the Minister indicate with
what regularity those tests are taken?
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Mr. Cummings: The Assiniboine is tested in three
or four sites quarterly. The Seine is not tested
regularly, as the Member is well aware. It is not
flowing a good percentage of the time in the last
couple of years. You are testing still water when you
are testing. | had occasion to ask what the water
quality was after the Save Our Seine meetings, and
| cannot recall the frequency or the location of the
tests. It seems to me the one test area was close to
where it discharges into the bigger river and that
water was within acceptable standards. Certainly it
was not a good test of what is flowing through,
because in fact there was almost nothing flowing
through.

Mr. Edwards: Madam Chairperson, | am interested
to know about the proposed medical waste sites. |
will seek direction of the Minister as to whether or
not this would properly come up under the Manitoba
Hazardous Waste Corporation, or whether he would
entertain questions now about the—| see him
shaking his head so | assume he will—siting of a
medical waste facility in the Province of Manitoba.
Can he give us an update as to the process, which
| gather is under way, to determine a site, an
appropriate site, and when a decision is expected
by his department?

Mr. Cummings: The Manitoba Health Services
Commission and the Minister of Health are looking
at the larger picture as to what is generated, the
volumes and so on. That report will be available
before very long. It is my understanding that it
should soon be available so that we can then start
to plot a strategy for the province. There is an
application, recently approved, for a medical waste
transfer facility, not a treatment facility. BFl has a
license to operate a transfer facility. There is another
application in from a smaller company that also is
applying to handle medical waste, primarily dental
waste, | understand, on an entrepreneur basis to
begin to approach practitioners across the province
to get dental waste out of the waste stream. That
one is not completed yet.

Mr. Edwards: Does the Minister feel confident that
all biomedical waste now, in the Province of
Manitoba, is being adequately disposed of?

Mr. Cummings: Adequate is—there is a judgment
call and obviously if we thought everything was
being done that could be done today we would not
have commissioned the work to be done by the
Health Services Commission—Department of
Health. We think there is room for improvement, and
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we want to be able to deal with that in alargerscale
across the province and as efficiently as possible.

We know that incineration is possible. We know
there are advocates out there today who say that
small scale equipmentinindividual hospitals can be
made to work at standards that are acceptable,
using other technologies. We want to get a firm
picture of everything that is out there and how it is
best brought into a location where it can be disposed
of, knowing full well that there are some cost
implications to doing this. It will bear on Health
Services Commission in terms of overhead with
whatever method of disposal is finally concluded.

Mr.Edwards:Isthere, in fact, still biomedical waste
ending up in landfill sites in this province, to the
Minister’'s knowledge ?

Mr.Cummings: Yes, | think thatis a fair conclusion.
*(2100)

Mr.Edwards: Towhatextent,Madam Chairperson,
and is the level that is occurring monitored by the
department?

Mr. Cummings: The department informs me that
they did an across-province survey last summer to
get a quick reading on this issue and the conclusion
was, as | indicated a moment ago, thatsome of it is
going into landfills. We also concluded from the
information we received that our best conclusion
would be that what would be considered more
dangerous or infectious material is not being left to
casual, if you will, or to that method of disposal, that
itis being kept separate and disposed of properly by
other means, but there are materials going to
landfills.

Mr. Edwards: Can the Minister indicate what the
time line is? | believe he said he felt a report would
be ready in the shortterm. Can the Minister indicate
what the time line is for the establishment of a
medical waste treatment centre for Manitoba, such
that all of the biomedical waste which should be
treated, other than going to a landfill, isin fact treated
properly?

Mr. Cummings: | indicated that it is my
understanding the report will be available shortly. |
would think the Minister of Health (Mr. Orchard)
could more accurately report on the stage of it.
Further to that, one need notdraw a conclusion that
we would necessarily build a system in the province.
We could well function with a transfer system and
hire facilities that would be acceptable as well.
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Mr.Edwards:What happens with biomedical waste
coming from the veterinarians’ offices around this
province? Is that treated as biomedical waste, as |
would assume it would qualify. How is that waste
disposed of? Is it monitored by the department as
biomedical waste?

Mr. Cummings: | do not know what regulations are
covered on our veterinarian clinics through the
Department of Agriculture, but by personal
experience | can tell you that the agricultural clinics
that | have had experience with would nothave what
the Member and | would normally think as
biomedical waste of a very large degree. Some of
the small animal clinics in the city might be more
inclined to have thattype of material, rather than the
large animal clinics that we have in the rural areas.
They would more likely have dead animals to
dispose of which would be disposed of either
through dead animal facilities or landfills which have
burial grounds on them. A number of landfills have
what are referred to as burial grounds for livestock
purposes where they are covered daily, and that is
governed under our regulation.

As far as operating on infectious material, it would
probably be the dead animal itself that would be
infectious, and it would be disposed of by burial.

Mr. Edwards: Does that in fact happen at landfill
sites in Winnipeg to service the various veterinary
clinics around this city’? Whathappens to carcasses
coming out of those clinics?

Mr. Cummings: | am not aware of the city landfill
accepting that material. We do notdirectly regulate
those veterinary clinics, but it is my understanding
that it might well be by incineration, small
incinerators that some of them have available to
them.

Mr. Edwards: Just one final question on this. Can
the Minister indicate who does regulate the
veterinary clinics and who would be responsible for
overseeing the disposal of whatever, hazardous
waste or the term, biomedical waste, which was
coming out of those clinics?

Mr. Cummings: | do not know whether it would be
treated in terms of biomedical waste. | think what
Veterinary Services, which is in the Department of
Agriculture, are concerned about and would be
regulating would be the transmission of disease
from dead stock or parts thereof. | think they would
be regulated and controlled under the Veterinary
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Services Branch. Certainly we have not undertaken
to extend regulation in that area.

Mr. Daryl Reld (Transcona): Madam Chairman, |
would like to have the opportunity to ask the Minister
a few questions concerning an item that has been
of concern to me for a couple of months now. | am
sure he is well aware of the issue, and that is the
Palliser Furniture plant in Transcona. | will not
belabour the point too long, but | need some
clarification on that.

| have attempted several times during Question
Period to ask questions on that subject and
unfortunately, through time constraints, | was
prevented from asking the necessary questions. For
that particular plant there have been news releases,
there have been consultant’s reports, there have
been director’s orders, all dealing with this same
subject.

There are still concerns out in the community as
I have indicated to the Minister today. | know he has
a copy of the petition that the residents had gathered
together in the community amongst other Ministers
in that Government. The questions | have are
dealing with, to start with, the director’s order. It
states that the necessary steps to ensure
compliance with all of the conditions of the
environmental Act Licence No. 1242 on or before
January 31, 1991 is the first condition that the
Palliser Furniture plant has to meet. With that
particular clause, it does not state in there what
steps the Minister would take should this particular
industry or business not complete this particular
clause, not comply with this clause.

*(2110)

| would like to know what is the Minister's
response to that, and what steps his department is
going to take if this plant does not meet the
necessary regulation or clause.

Mr. Cummings: In the event that they would not
comply or would not be in a position to comply, we
would have a choice of fining them as a result of
charges or we could ultimately shut them down.

Mr. Reld: | would like some indication, Madam
Chairperson, what would be the Minister's—what
data he would rely on to determine what course of
action his department would take, whether or not
they impose the fines or they impose the close-down
order.

Mr. Cummings: | think thatis hypothetical. Palliser
has a problem and has moved, depending on what
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your opinion is of the speed in which they have
responded—but they have given us full access to
the consultant's report, which relates to questions |
had earlier about the professionalism of work that is
done outside of the department. | think the
department accepted the professionalism of this
report, and we fully expect compliance. | am not
here to say whether it would be a $300 ticket or
whether you would go on to court to seek a higher
fine. That is entirely hypothetical until we reach a
point when they are out of compliance. It is certainly
my expectation that they will be able to meet that
and certainly intend to see that they do, frankly. It
does need to be completed.

Mr. Reld: That did not quite meet the needs of the
question that | had put to the Minister, as well as, |
am sure, it does not meet the needs of the
concerned residents in the area. These people have
waited approximately a year to have this situation
resolved, and | am sure if the Minister was a resident
in that area he would be seriously concerned
himself.

| am sure he is privy to the pictures that were
attached to the petition that was given to his
department. He is well aware of the dust problem.

Of course, attached to that duster is some
concern about the presence of formaldehyde.
Whether it be in free air or attached to the dust
particles themselves is a moot point in this case.

| thinkiitis important for these people to know and
have an understanding, because there was some
discussion between myself and the owner of that
particular plant approximately a week ago. The
owner indicated to me that there was some
technology that was going to be putin place as part
of this director's order. Yet when | have had some
discussions with Members of this House who have
knowledge of this particular case, there is some
discrepancy in facts, that they are not going to apply
the necessary technology to meet the needs as the
consultant had recommended.

In this case, that is why | asked the Minister what
necessary steps he has in place to deal with the
eventuality that these recommendations of the
consultant are not implemented.

Mr. Cummings: | am not going to answer a
hypothetical question about how big a fine would be
imposed. | potentially said they could be shut down
as a result of non-compliance. If the Member has
some technical information that | am unaware of, if






























































